Scoreboard Trumpet Horn Installation Manual ED-10006 Rev 7 - 26 August 2013

DAKTRONICS



ED-10006 Project 1091 Rev 7 – 26 August 2013

DAKTRONICS, INC.

Copyright © 2007-2013

All rights reserved. While every precaution has been taken in the preparation of this manual, the publisher assumes no responsibility for errors or omissions. No part of this book covered by the copyrights hereon may be reproduced or copied in any form or by any means – graphic, electronic, or mechanical, including photocopying, taping, or information storage and retrieval systems – without written permission of the publisher.

Table of Contents

Table of Contents i		
Section 1:	12 VDC Horn Installation (LED)	1
1.1	Equipment	1
1.2	Location	1
1.3	Horn Interface Card & Horn Plate Assembly	1
	Horn Interface Card Installation	1
	Gen IV LED Scoreboards	1
	GEN I, II, & III LED Scoreboards	2
	Horn Plate Assembly Installation	2
1.4	Trumpet Horn Installation	2
	Preparation	2
	Installation	2
1.5	Compact Horn Replacement	3
1.6	Schematics	3
Section 2:	24 VDC Trumpet Horn Installation (LED Solar Power Option Only)	5
2.1	Equipment	5
2.2	Location	5
2.3	Horn Preparation	5
2.4	Horn Installation	5
Section 3:	120 VAC Trumpet Horn Installation (LED)	7
3.1	Equipment	7
3.2	Location	7
3.3	Basic Horn Installation	7
3.4	Complete Horn Installation	7
	Horn Interface Card Installation	7
	Gen IV LED Scoreboards	7
	GEN I, II, & III LED Scoreboards	8
	Horn Installation	8
3.5	Schematics	8
Section 4:	12 VDC Trumpet Horn Installation (Incandescent)	9
4.1	Equipment	9
4.2	Location	9
4.3	Horn Plate Assembly Installation	9
4.4	Horn Preparation	
4.5	Horn Installation	10
4.6	Schematics	10
Section 5:	120 VAC Trumpet Horn Installation (Incandescent)	
5.1	Equipment	11
5.2	Location	11
5.3	Basic Horn Installation	11

5.4 5.5	Complete Horn Installation Schematics	11 12
Section 6:	Daktronics Exchange and Repair & Return Programs	13
6.1	Exchange Program	13
	Before Contacting Daktronics	13
6.2	Repair & Return Program	14
	Shipping Address	14
6.3	Daktronics Warranty and Limitation of Liability	14
Appendix A:	Reference Drawings	15
Appendix B:	Daktronics Warranty and Limitation of Liability	

Section 1: 12 VDC Horn Installation (LED)

Refer to Drawing B-328919 in Appendix A for general wiring details of LED scoreboard horns.

The following section describes the 12 VDC trumpet horn installation and compact horn replacement for an LED scoreboard. Assemblies are available for both 120 and 240 VAC scoreboards.

Note: Disconnect power to the scoreboard before installing the horn!

1.1 Equipment

The trumpet horn kit consists of:

- a horn
- a metal mounting angle (trumpet horn only)
- a metal enclosure and 12 volt power plate assembly
- a horn interface card and harness
- assorted #10 screws, tapping screws, and nuts

1.2 Location

The horn entrance panel is typically located in the center of the lower half of the scoreboard (refer to the component location drawings included in the scoreboard manual for specific location). The horn will be mounted directly to this entrance panel. The panel may be secured only by screws, or it may have hinges that allow it to swing open.

1.3 Horn Interface Card & Horn Plate Assembly

- If the horn kit was ordered with the scoreboard, the horn interface card and horn plate assembly were likely installed at the factory; skip ahead to **Section 1.4**.
- If these components have not been installed, follow the instructions under *Horn Interface Card Installation* and *Horn Plate Assembly Installation*.

Horn Interface Card Installation

Reference Drawings:

F.Assy: 12V DC Horn Mounting- Outdoor LED SCBD Drawing B-242731 Assy: Horn Card Installation- Gen III and IV Drivers Drawing B-302328

- Current 120 V part number: 0P-1192-0399
- Current 240 V part number: 0P-1150-0255
- Pre-2008 part number: 0P-1150-0246

Gen IV LED Scoreboards

Attach the horn interface card inside the scoreboard driver enclosure and make the proper wiring connections from the horn interface card to the driver per **Drawing B-302328**, detail A. Refer also to **Drawing B-242731**, left detail.

GEN I, II, & III LED Scoreboards

Attach the horn interface card inside the scoreboard driver enclosure and make the proper wiring connections from the horn interface card to the driver per **Drawing B-302328**, detail B. Refer also to **Drawing B-242731**, center and right details.

- If the scoreboard is Gen III and built from April November 2006, a horn interface harness kit (0A-1192-1692) is required.
- If the scoreboard is Gen III and built *prior to* April 2006, an adaptor harness (0A-1192-1687) is also required.

Horn Plate Assembly Installation

Reference Drawings:

Plate Ass	v: Outdoor SCE	RD 12V/DC Horn	ASSK	Drawing	Δ-128944
FIGLE ASS	y. Outuoor 301		, ASSN	. Drawing	A-120344

Drawing A-128944 shows the components of the horn plate assembly.

- **1.** Open the horn entrance panel (see **Section 1.2**).
- **2.** On the interior of the back panel of scoreboard, drill two 5/32" holes 4" apart (these holes may have been pre-drilled at the factory). The enclosure is to be attached to the inside of the scoreboard and accessible when the entrance panel is opened.

Note: Be careful not to damage any internal components when drilling!

- 3. Attach the enclosure to the scoreboard using the #10 tapping screws provided.
- **4.** Attach the plate assembly to the enclosure using #10 tapping screws provided.
- 5. Attach the cover to the enclosure using the #10 tapping screws provided.

1.4 Trumpet Horn Installation

Preparation

Reference Drawings:

F.Assy: 12V DC Horn Mounting- Outdoor LED SCBD	Drawing B-242731
Horn Assembly	Drawing A-320004

- 1. Insert bushings into the appropriate 3/8" holes in the mounting angle.
- **2.** Thread the two gray wires from the horn through the top of the mounting angle.
- 3. Attach the horn to the mounting angle using the #10 hardware provided.
- 4. Thread the two gray wires through the 3/8" hole in the rear of the mounting angle.

Installation

Reference Drawings:

Template, Hole Drilling, Trumpet Horn	Drawing A-83502
F.Assy: 12V DC Horn Mounting- Outdoor LED SCBD	Drawing B-242731
Assy: Horn Card Installation- Gen III and IV Drivers	Drawing B-302328

Locate the horn entrance panel (see Section 1.2). There should be a 2" knockout on this panel. Remove this knockout. If the knockout has not been provided, use Drawing A-83502 as a guide to drill one ³/₈" hole and two ⁷/₃₂" holes in the panel.

Note 1: Be careful not to damage any internal components when drilling! **Note 2:** The knockout may have been removed at the factory.

- **2.** Thread the two gray wires from the horn through the knockout (or 3/8" hole) in the scoreboard access panel.
- **3.** Place horn/angle bracket assembly over the 2" knockout and $7/_{32}"$ holes in the front panel of the scoreboard and attach using #10 hardware provided.
- **4.** Using the wiring nuts provided, connect one gray wire from the horn to the black wire from the plate assembly. Connect the other gray wire to the red wire.
- Route the 2-pin horn plate harness to A3-J3 on the horn interface card, per Drawing B-302328 and Drawing B-242731. If the harness doesn't reach, connect the 2-pin to 2-pin extension cable between the horn plate and the horn interface card as needed.
- **6.** Close and secure the horn entrance panel.
- 7. To test the horn, power on the scoreboard and control console, and press HORN.

1.5 Compact Horn Replacement

Reference Drawings:

Assembly Drawing, 12V DC Compact Horn 120V or 240V Drawing B-1063340

The compact horn is standard on certain scoreboards. Therefore, this section discusses the replacement of an existing horn.

- **1.** Locate the horn entrance panel and open it (see **Section 1.2**).
- 2. Unscrew the wiring nuts that connect the existing horn to the plate assembly.
- 3. Remove the #10 hardware securing the existing horn.
- 4. Cut the two-pin plug off the new horn and strip 5/32" of insulation from each wire.

Note: Remember what wire was connected to which pin of the plug!

- 5. Using the wiring nuts provided, connect the Pin 2 wire from the horn to the black wire from the plate assembly. Connect the Pin 1 wire to the red wire.
- 6. Attach the new horn to the bracket using the #10 hardware.
- 7. Make wiring connections between the horn interface card, the horn plate assembly, and the existing scoreboard driver per **Drawing B-1063340**.
- 8. Close and secure the horn entrance panel.
- 9. To test the horn, power on the scoreboard and control console, and press HORN.

1.6 Schematics

Reference Drawings:

Drawing A-128938	Schematic, Outdoor SCBD 12VDC Trumpet Horn, AS5K
Drawing A-198618	Schematic- Outdoor SCBD 12VDC Compact Horn
Drawing A-270554	240V Horn Conversation Kit, for 12V Trumpet Assy
KDrawing A-325028	Schematic, 240V OD SCBD 12VDC Trumpet Horn, AS5K

Refer to the appropriate drawing above for detailed horn plate wiring schematics.

Section 2: 24 VDC Trumpet Horn Installation (LED Solar Power Option Only)

The following section describes the 24 VDC trumpet horn installation for a solar-powered LED scoreboard.

Note: Disconnect power to the scoreboard before installing the horn!

2.1 Equipment

The trumpet horn kit consists of:

- a horn
- a metal mounting angle
- a 24 volt outdoor horn harness
- assorted #10 screws, tapping screws, and nuts

2.2 Location

The horn entrance panel is typically located in the center of the lower half of the scoreboard (refer to the component location drawings included in the scoreboard manual for specific location). The horn will be mounted directly to this entrance panel. The panel may be secured only by screws, or it may have hinges that allow it to swing open.

2.3 Horn Preparation

Reference Drawings:

Horn Assembly..... Drawing A-320004

- 1. Insert bushings into the appropriate 3/8" holes in the mounting angle.
- 2. Thread the two wires from the horn through the top of the mounting angle.
- 3. Attach the horn to the mounting angle using the #10 hardware provided.
- 4. Thread the two wires through the 3/8" hole in the rear of the mounting angle.

2.4 Horn Installation

Reference Drawings:

Template, Hole Drilling, Trumpet Horn	Drawing A-83502
Installation Diagram: Solar Power Scoreboard	Drawing C-315892
Assembly Horn Kit Option	Drawing A-321327

Locate the horn entrance panel (see Section 2.2). There should be a 2" knockout on this panel. Remove this knockout. If the knockout has not been provided, use Drawing A-83502 as a guide to drill one ³/₈" hole and two ⁷/₃₂" holes in the panel.

Note 1: Be careful not to damage any internal components when drilling! **Note 2:** The knockout may have been removed at the factory.

- **2.** Thread the two wires from the horn through the knockout (or 3/8" hole) in the scoreboard access panel.
- 3. Place horn/angle bracket assembly over the knockout/hole and 7/32" holes in the front panel of the scoreboard and attach using #10 hardware provided.
- 4. Install the horn harness as shown in Drawing A-321327.
- 5. Make wiring connections between the horn and the existing scoreboard driver per **Drawing C-315892** Electrical Installation Details.
- **6.** Close and secure the horn entrance panel.
- 7. To test the horn, power on the scoreboard and control console, and press HORN.

Section 3: 120 VAC Trumpet Horn Installation (LED)

Refer to Drawing B-328919 in Appendix A for general wiring details of LED scoreboard horns.

The following section describes the 120 VAC trumpet horn installation for an LED scoreboard. Assemblies are only available for 120 VAC scoreboards.

Note: Disconnect power to the scoreboard before installing the horn!

3.1 Equipment

The trumpet horn kit consists of:

- a horn
- a metal mounting angle
- a horn interface card and harness
- assorted #10 screws, tapping screws, and nuts

3.2 Location

The horn entrance panel is typically located in the center of the lower half of the scoreboard (refer to the component location drawings included in the scoreboard manual for specific location). The horn will be mounted directly to this entrance panel. The panel may be secured only by screws, or it may have hinges that allow it to swing open.

3.3 Basic Horn Installation

- If the horn kit was ordered with the scoreboard, the horn interface card, mounting angle, and horn body were likely installed at the factory; follow the simple instructions below.
- If these components have not been installed, skip ahead to Section 3.4.
 - **1.** Locate the horn entrance panel (see **Section 3.2**).
 - **2.** Locate and screw the trumpet part of the horn into the horn body through the 2" knockout on this panel.

3.4 Complete Horn Installation

Horn Interface Card Installation

Reference Drawings:

Assy: Horn Card Installation- Gen III and IV Drivers Drawing B-302328

- Current 120 V part number: 0P-1192-0399
- Pre-2008 part number: 0P-1150-0246

Gen IV LED Scoreboards

Attach the horn interface card inside the scoreboard driver enclosure and make the proper wiring connections from the horn interface card to the driver per **Drawing B-302328**, detail A.

GEN I, II, & III LED Scoreboards

Attach the horn interface card inside the scoreboard driver enclosure and make the proper wiring connections from the horn interface card to the driver per **Drawing B-302328**, detail B.

- If the scoreboard is Gen III and built from April November 2006, a horn interface harness kit (0A-1192-1692) is required.
- If the scoreboard is Gen III and built *prior to* April 2006, an adaptor harness (0A-1192-1687) is also required.

Horn Installation

Reference Drawings:

Template, Hole Drilling, Trumpet Horn	Drawing A-83502
Horn Mounting Instructions, 120V, TI-2003-11	Drawing B-172553
Assy: Horn Card Installation- Gen III and IV Drivers	Drawing A-302328
120V AC Horn Mounting, Outdoor Sports	Drawing A-308058
120V AC Horn Mounting, Outdoor Sports	Drawing A-1055044

 Locate the horn entrance panel (see Section 3.2). There should be a 2" knockout on this panel. Remove this knockout. If the knockout has not been provided, use Drawing A-83502 as a guide to drill one 2" hole in the panel.

Note 1: Be careful not to damage any internal components when drilling! **Note 2:** The knockout may have been removed at the factory.

- 2. Remove the trumpet from the horn body by unscrewing it.
- Mount the bracket to the scoreboard frame using #10 hardware provided, and connect the horn harness to the horn wires with included wire nuts. Refer to Drawing A-308058. For newer "P1647" scoreboards, refer to Drawing A-1055044. For the TI-2003, refer to Drawing B-172553.

Note: When replacing a horn:

- Use ¹/₄" bolts, nuts, and lock washers provided to attach the horn body to the mounting bracket so that the horn is on the same side as the short flange (the horn should be pointing downward).
- **2)** Be sure to mount the horn to the bracket so that the wires are facing the bottom of the cabinet to prevent water from running along them.
- **3)** Attach the copper ground lug to the bottom-right corner of the mounting bracket using the bolt and serrated washer and nut provided, and connect the green wire from the horn to the ground lug (does not apply to TI-2003).
- **4.** Route the horn harness to A3-J3 on the horn interface card, per **Drawing B-302328**. If the harness doesn't reach, connect the 2-pin to 2-pin extension cable between the horn and the horn interface card as needed.
- 5. Close the access panel and screw the trumpet back onto the horn body.
- 6. To test the horn, power on the scoreboard and control console, and press HORN.

3.5 Schematics

Reference Drawings:

Schematic: 120VAC Trum	pet Horn	. Drawing	A-132173
		· =· ~	

Section 4: 12 VDC Trumpet Horn Installation (Incandescent)

Refer to Drawing C-220009 in Appendix A for general wiring details of incandescent scoreboard horns.

The following section describes the 12 VDC trumpet horn installation for an incandescent scoreboard.

Note: Disconnect power to the scoreboard before installing the horn!

4.1 Equipment

The trumpet horn kit consists of:

- a horn
- a metal mounting angle
- a metal enclosure and 12 volt power plate assembly
- assorted #10 screws, tapping screws, and nuts

4.2 Location

The horn entrance panel is typically located in the center of the lower half of the scoreboard (refer to the component location drawings included in the scoreboard manual for specific location). The horn will be mounted directly to this entrance panel. The panel may be secured only by screws, or it may have hinges that allow it to swing open.

4.3 Horn Plate Assembly Installation

- If the horn kit was ordered with the scoreboard, the horn plate assembly was likely installed at the factory; skip ahead to **Section 4.4**.
- If these components have not been installed, follow the instructions below.

Reference Drawings:

```
Relay Enclosure & Plate Assembly.....Drawing A-86903
```

Drawing A-86903 shows the components of the horn plate assembly.

- **1.** Open the horn entrance panel (see **Section 4.2**).
- **2.** On the interior of the back panel of scoreboard, drill two 5/32" holes 4" apart (these holes may have been pre-drilled at the factory). The enclosure is to be attached to the inside of the scoreboard and accessible when the entrance panel is opened.

Note: Be careful not to damage any internal components when drilling!

- 3. Attach the enclosure to the scoreboard using the #10 tapping screws provided.
- 4. Attach the plate assembly to the enclosure using #10 tapping screws provided.
- 5. Attach the cover to the enclosure using the #10 tapping screws provided.

4.4 Horn Preparation

Reference Drawings:

Horn Assembly Drawing A-320004

- 1. Insert bushings into the appropriate 3/8" holes in the mounting angle.
- 2. Thread the two wires from the horn through the top of the mounting angle.
- 3. Attach the horn to the mounting angle using the #10 hardware provided.
- 4. Thread the two wires through the 3/8" hole in the rear of the mounting angle.

4.5 Horn Installation

Reference Drawings:

Template, Hole Drilling, Trumpet Horn	Drawing	A-83502
F.Assy; Incandescent, 12V DC Horn Mounting	Drawing	A-83333

Locate the horn entrance panel (see Section 4.2). There should be a 2" knockout on this panel. Remove this knockout. If the knockout has not been provided, use Drawing A-83502 as a guide to drill one ³/₈" hole and two ⁷/₃₂" holes in the panel.

Note 1: Be careful not to damage any internal components when drilling! **Note 2:** The knockout may have been removed at the factory.

- **2.** Thread the two gray wires from the horn through the knockout (or 3/8" hole) in the scoreboard access panel.
- **3.** Place horn/angle bracket assembly over the 2" knockout and $7/_{32}"$ holes in the front panel of the scoreboard and attach using #10 hardware provided.
- **4.** Using the wiring nuts provided, connect one gray wire from the horn to the black wire from the plate assembly. Connect the other gray wire to the red wire.
- 5. Make wiring connections between the horn plate assembly and the existing scoreboard driver per **Drawing A-83333**.

Note: A 2-pin to 4-pin adapter harness may be needed to connect new horn assembly to scoreboards built prior to April 2006.

- 6. Close and secure the horn entrance panel.
- 7. To test the horn, power on the scoreboard and control console, and press HORN.

4.6 Schematics

Reference Drawings: Schematic, Football Trumpet Horn......

Section 5: 120 VAC Trumpet Horn Installation (Incandescent)

Refer to Drawing C-220009 in Appendix A for general wiring details of incandescent scoreboard horns.

The following section describes the 120 VAC trumpet horn installation for an incandescent scoreboard. Assemblies are only available for 120 VAC scoreboards.

Note: Disconnect power to the scoreboard before installing the horn!

5.1 Equipment

The trumpet horn kit consists of:

- a horn
- a metal mounting angle
- assorted #10 screws, tapping screws, and nuts

5.2 Location

The horn entrance panel is typically located in the center of the lower half of the scoreboard (refer to the component location drawings included in the scoreboard manual for specific location). The horn will be mounted directly to this entrance panel. The panel may be secured only by screws, or it may have hinges that allow it to swing open.

5.3 Basic Horn Installation

- If the horn kit was ordered with the scoreboard, the horn interface card, mounting angle, and horn body were likely installed at the factory; follow the simple instructions below.
- If these components have not been installed, skip ahead to Section 5.4.
 - **1.** Locate the horn entrance panel (see **Section 5.2**).
 - **2.** Locate and screw the trumpet part of the horn into the horn body through the 2" knockout on this panel.

5.4 Complete Horn Installation

Reference Drawings:

Horn Installation	Drawing	A-44197
Template, Hole Drilling, Trumpet Horn	Drawing	A-83502
Assy; Trumpet Horn Kit	Drawing	A-88563

 Locate the horn entrance panel (see Section 5.2). There should be a 2" knockout on this panel. Remove this knockout. If the knockout has not been provided, use Drawing A-83502 as a guide to drill one 2" hole in the panel.

Note 1: Be careful not to damage any internal components when drilling! **Note 2:** The knockout may have been removed at the factory.

- 2. Remove the trumpet from the horn body by unscrewing it.
- **3.** Mount the bracket to the scoreboard frame using #10 hardware provided, and connect the horn harness to the horn wires. Refer to **Drawings A-44197** and **A-88563**.

Note: When replacing a horn:

- 1) Use ¹/₄" bolts, nuts, and lock washers provided to attach the horn body to the mounting bracket so that the horn is on the same side as the short flange (the horn should be pointing downward).
- **2)** Be sure to mount the horn to the bracket so that the wires are facing the bottom of the cabinet to prevent water from running along them.
- **3)** Attach the copper ground lug to the bottom-right corner of the mounting bracket using the bolt and serrated washer and nut provided, and connect the green wire from the horn to the ground lug.
- **4.** Connect horn relay harness with white plug to power entry panel marked HORN or to the right side of driver enclosure to jack marked J-101.

Note: A 2-pin to 4-pin adapter harness may be needed to connect new horn assembly to scoreboards built prior to April 2006.

- 5. Close the access panel and screw the trumpet back onto the horn body.
- 6. To test the horn, power on the scoreboard and control console, and press HORN.

5.5 Schematics

Reference Drawings:

Schematic: 120VAC Trumpet Horn	Drawing A-132173
--------------------------------	------------------

Section 6: Daktronics Exchange and Repair & Return Programs

6.1 Exchange Program

The Daktronics Exchange Program is a service for quickly replacing key components in need of repair. If a component fails, Daktronics sends a replacement part to the customer who, in turn, returns the failed component to Daktronics. This decreases equipment downtime. Customers who follow the program guidelines explained below will receive this service.

Before Contacting Daktronics

Identify these important part numbers:

Assembly Number:
Job/Contract Number:
Date Installed:
Daktronics Customer ID Number:

To participate in the Exchange Program, follow these steps.

1. Call Daktronics Customer Service.

Market Description	Customer Service Number
Schools (including community/junior colleges), religious organizations, municipal clubs and community centers	877-605-1115
Universities and professional sporting events, live events for auditoriums and arenas	866-343-6018

2. When the new exchange part is received, mail the old part to Daktronics. If the replacement part fixes the problem, send in the problem part being replaced.

- **a.** Package the old part in the same shipping materials in which the replacement part arrived.
- b. Fill out and attach the enclosed UPS shipping document.
- **c.** Ship the part to Daktronics.

3. The defective or unused parts must be returned to Daktronics within 5 weeks of initial order shipment.

If any part is not returned within five (5) weeks, a non-refundable invoice will be presented to the customer for the costs of replenishing the exchange parts inventory with a new part.

Daktronics reserves the right to refuse parts that have been damaged due to acts of nature or causes other than normal wear and tear.

6.2 Repair & Return Program

For items not subject to exchange, Daktronics offers a Repair & Return Program. To send a part for repair, follow these steps:

- Call or fax Daktronics Customer Service: Refer to the appropriate market number in the chart listed on the previous page. Fax: 605-697-4444
- **2. Receive a case number before shipping.** This expedites repair of the part.
- **3.** Package and pad the item carefully to prevent damage during shipment. Electronic components, such as printed circuit boards, should be placed in an antistatic bag before boxing. Daktronics does not recommend using packing 'peanuts' when shipping.
- 4. Enclose:
 - name
 - address
 - phone number
 - the case number
 - a clear description of symptoms

Shipping Address

Daktronics Customer Service [Case #] 201 Daktronics Drive, Dock E Brookings, SD 57006

6.3 Daktronics Warranty and Limitation of Liability

The Daktronics Warranty and Limitation of Liability is located in **Appendix B**. The Warranty is independent of Extended Service agreements and is the authority in matters of service, repair, and display operation.

Appendix A: Reference Drawings

Drawing Title	Drawing Number
Horn Installation	A-44197
Schematic. Football Trumpet Horn	A-83329
F.Assy: Incandescent. 12V DC Horn Mounting	B-83333
Template. Hole Drilling. Trumpet Horn	A-83502
Relay Enclosure & Plate Assembly	A-86903
Assy: Trumpet Horn Kit	A-88563
Schematic, Outdoor SCBD 12VDC Trumpet Horn, AS5K	A-128938
Plate Assy: Outdoor SCBD 12VDC Horn, AS5K	A-128944
Schematic: 120VAC Trumpet Horn	A-132173
Horn Mounting Instructions, 120V, TI-2003-11	B-172553
Schematic- Outdoor SCBD 12VDC Compact Horn	A-198618
Wiring Gude: Outdoor Horn Kits- Incandescent	C-220009
F.Assy: 12V DC Horn Mounting- Outdoor LED SCBD	B-242731
240V Horn Conversation Kit, for 12V Trumpet Assy.	A-270554
Assy: Horn Card Installation- Gen III and IV Drivers	B-302328
120V AC Horn Mounting, Outdoor Sports	A-308058
Installation Diagram: Solar Power Scoreboard	C-315892
Horn Assembly	A-320004
Assembly Horn Kit Option	A-321327
Schematic, 240V OD SCBD 12VDC Trumpet Horn, AS5K	A-325028
Wiring Guide: Outdoor Horn Kits- LED	B-328919
120V AC Horn Mounting, Outdoor Sports	A-1055044
Assembly Drawing, 12V DC Compact Horn 120V or 240V	B-1063340



		P1 1 GRY BLK BLK U		10 70 40 R1 1.3K Ω		DAKTRONICS, INC. BROOKINGS, SD 57006
01	05 007 06	SWITCHED TRANSFORMER BLOCK SECONDARY TERMINALS 6 AND 10.	JMC		DES. BY:	AVB DRAWN BY: AVB DATE: 18 JUN 96
REV.	DATE	DESCRIPTION	BY	APPR.	REVISION	APPR. BY: SCALE: NONE 1091-R03A-83329











































DAKTRONICS WARRANTY & LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

This Warranty and Limitation of Liability (the "Warranty") sets forth the warranty provided by Daktronics with respect to the Equipment. By accepting delivery of the Equipment, Purchaser agrees to be bound by and accept these terms and conditions. Unless otherwise defined herein, all terms within the Warranty shall have the same meaning and definition as provided elsewhere in the Agreement.

DAKTRONICS WILL ONLY BE OBLIGATED TO HONOR THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN THESE TERMS AND CONDITIONS UPON RECEIPT OF FULL PAYMENT FOR THE EQUIPMENT.

1. Warranty Coverage

A. Daktronics warrants to the original end-user that the Equipment will be free from Defects (as defined below) in materials and workmanship for a period of one (1) year (the "Warranty Period"). The Warranty Period shall commence on the earlier of: (i) four weeks from the date that the Equipment leaves Daktronics' facility; or (ii) Substantial Completion as defined herein. The Warranty Period shall expire on the first anniversary of the commencement date.

"Substantial Completion" means the operational availability of the Equipment to the Purchaser in accordance with the Equipment's specifications, without regard to punch-list items, or other non-substantial items which do not affect the operation of the Equipment.

B. Daktronics' obligation under this Warranty is limited to, at Daktronics' option, replacing or repairing, any Equipment or part thereof that is found by Daktronics not to conform to the Equipment's specifications. Unless otherwise directed by Daktronics, any defective part or component shall be returned to Daktronics for repair or replacement. This Warranty does not include on-site labor charges to remove or install these components. Daktronics may, at its option, provide on-site warranty service. Daktronics shall have a reasonable period of time to make such replacements or repairs and all labor associated therewith shall be performed during regular working hours. Regular working hours are Monday through Friday between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. at the location where labor is performed, excluding any holidays observed by either Purchaser or Daktronics.

C. Daktronics shall pay ground transportation charges for the return of any defective component of the Equipment. All such items shall be shipped by Purchaser DDP Daktronics; designated facility. If returned Equipment is repaired or replaced under the terms of this warranty, Daktronics will prepay ground transportation charges back to Purchaser and shall ship such items DDP Purchaser's designated facility; otherwise, Purchaser shall pay transportation charges to return the Equipment back to the Purchaser and such Equipment shall be shipped Ex Works Daktronics designated facility. All returns must be pre-approved by Daktronics before shipment. Daktronics shall not be obligated to pay freight for any unapproved return. Purchaser shall pay any upgraded or expedited transportation charges.

D. Any replacement parts or Equipment will be new or serviceably used, comparable in function and performance to the original part or Equipment, and warranted for the remainder of the Warranty Period. Purchasing additional parts or Equipment from the Seller does not extend the Warranty Period.

E. Defects shall be defined as follows. With regard to the Equipment (excepting LEDs), a "Defect" shall refer to a material variance from the design specifications that prohibit the Equipment from operating for its intended use. With respect to LEDs, "Defects" are defined as LED pixels that cease to emit light. The limited warranty provided by Daktronics does not impose any duty or liability upon Daktronics for partial LED pixel degradation nor does the limited warranty provide for the replacement or installation of communication methods including but not limited to, wire, fiber optic cable, conduit, trenching, or for the purpose of overcoming local site interference radio equipment substitutions.

EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS WARRANTY, TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, DAKTRONICS DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL OTHER PROMISES, REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES APPLICABLE TO THE EQUIPMENT AND REPLACES ALL OTHER WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, ACCURACTY OR QUALITY OF DATA. NO ORAL OR WRITTEN INFORMATION, OR ADVICE GIVEN BY THE COMPANY, ITS AGENTS OR EMPLOYEES, SHALL CREATE A WARRANTY OR IN ANY WAY INCREASE THE SCOPE OF THIS LIMITED WARRANTY.

THIS LIMITED WARRANTY IS NOT TRANSFERABLE.

2. Exclusion from Warranty Coverage

The limited warranty provided by Daktronics does not impose any duty or liability upon Daktronics for:

A. Any damage occurring, at any time, during shipment of Equipment unless otherwise provided for in the Agreement. When returning Equipment to Daktronics for repair or replacement, Purchaser assumes all risk of loss or damage, and agrees to use any shipping containers that might be provided by Daktronics and to ship the Equipment in the manner prescribed by Daktronics;

B. Any damage caused by the improper installation, adjustment, repair or service of the Equipment by anyone other than personnel of Daktronics or its authorized repair agents;

C. Damage caused by the failure to provide a continuously suitable environment, including, but not limited to: (i) neglect or misuse, (ii) a failure or sudden surge of electrical power, (iii) improper air conditioning, humidity control, or other environmental conditions outside of the Equipment's technical specifications such as extreme temperatures, corrosives and metallic pollutants, or (iv) any other cause other than ordinary use;

D. Damage caused by fire, flood, earthquake, water, wind, lightning or other natural disaster, strike, inability to obtain materials or utilities, war, terrorism, civil disturbance or any other cause beyond Daktronics' reasonable control;



DAKTRONICS WARRANTY & LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

E. Failure to adjust, repair or replace any item of Equipment if it would be impractical for Daktronics personnel to do so because of connection of the Equipment by mechanical or electrical means to another device not supplied by Daktronics, or the existence of general environmental conditions at the site that pose a danger to Daktronics personnel;

F. Any statements made about the product by any salesperson, dealer, distributor or agent, unless such statements are in a written document signed by an officer of Daktronics. Such statements as are not included in a signed writing do not constitute warranties, shall not be relied upon by Purchaser and are not part of the contract of sale;

G. Any damage arising from the use of Daktronics products in any application other than the commercial and industrial applications for which they are intended, unless, upon request, such use is specifically approved in writing by Daktronics;

H. Any performance of preventive maintenance;

J. Third-party systems and other ancillary equipment including without limitation front-end video control systems, audio systems, video processors and players, HVAC equipment, batteries and LCD screens;

K. Incorporation of accessories, attachments, software or other devices not furnished by Daktronics; or

L. Paint or refinishing the Equipment or furnishing material for this purpose.

3. <u>Limitation of Liability</u>

Daktronics shall be under no obligation to furnish continued service under this Warranty if alterations are made to the Equipment without the prior written approval of Daktronics.

It is specifically agreed that the price of the Equipment is based upon the following limitation of liability. In no event shall Daktronics (including its subsidiaries, affiliates, officers, directors, employees, or agents) be liable for any special, consequential, incidental or exemplary damages arising out of or in any way connected with the Equipment or otherwise, including but not limited to damages for lost profits, cost of substitute or replacement equipment, down time, lost data, injury to property or any damages or sums paid by Purchaser to third parties, even if Daktronics has been advised of the possibility of such damages. The foregoing limitation of liability shall apply whether any claim is based upon principles of contract, tort or statutory duty, principles of indemnity or contribution, or otherwise.

In no event shall Daktronics be liable to Purchaser or any other party for loss, damage, or injury of any kind or nature arising out of or in connection with this Warranty in excess of the purchase price of the Equipment actually delivered to and paid for by the Purchaser. The Purchaser's remedy in any dispute under this Warranty shall be ultimately limited to the Purchase Price of the Equipment to the extent the Purchase Price has been paid.

4. Assignment of Rights

The Warranty contained herein extends only to the original end-user (which may be the Purchaser) of the Equipment and no attempt to extend the Warranty to any subsequent user-transferee of the Equipment shall be valid or enforceable without the express written consent of Daktronics.

5. <u>Governing Law</u>

The rights and obligations of the parties under this warranty shall not be governed by the provisions of the United Nations Convention on Contracts for the International Sales of Goods of 1980. Both parties consent to the application of the laws of the State of South Dakota to govern, interpret, and enforce all of Purchaser and Daktronics rights, duties, and obligations arising from, or relating in any manner to, the subject matter of this Warranty, without regard to conflict of law principles.

6. Availability of Extended Service Agreement

For Purchaser's protection, in addition to that afforded by the warranties set forth herein, Purchaser may purchase extended warranty services to cover the Equipment. The Extended Service Agreement, available from Daktronics, provides for electronic parts repair and/or on-site labor for an extended period from the date of expiration of this warranty. Alternatively, an Extended Service Agreement may be purchased in conjunction with this warranty for extended additional services. For further information, contact Daktronics Customer Service at 1-800-DAKTRONics (1-800-325-8766).

